
 Notice of a Meeting 
Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 

May 2, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 2600 Roosevelt Drive, Dalworthington Gardens, Texas 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reserves the right to adjourn into closed session at any time during the course of this 
meeting as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

1. Call to Order

2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In compliance
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda, the City staff and
Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and may respond only with
statements of factual information or existing policy.

3. Approval of minutes
i. December 13, 2023
ii. December 19, 2023
iii. January 10, 2024
iv. February 1, 2024
v. March 7, 2024

4. Discussion and possible recommendation regarding an application from Robert Walker with LRG Associates, LLC for
a special exception at 2889 W. Pioneer Parkway for mobile food units to be on property longer than twenty-four hours
in accordance with Section 14.02.321(c)(22) of City ordinances.

5. Adjourn

CERTIFICATION 
This is to certify that a copy of the May 2, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place 
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website, www.cityofdwg.net, in compliance with Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

DATE OF POSTING: ____________________    TIME OF POSTING: ____________________    TAKEN DOWN: ____________________    

_________________________________________ 
Sandra Ma, City Secretary 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 1 of 26

http://www.cityofdwg.net/


Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2023 

1. Call to Order

Chairman Todd Batiste called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following present:

Members Present:
Todd Batiste, Chairperson
Paul Switzer
Anthony Parker, Alternate

Members Absent:
Maurice Clark, Vice Chairperson
Brian Colin
Johanna Storm

Staff Present:
Sandra Ma, Interim City Secretary

2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In
compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda, the
City staff and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and may
respond only with statements of factual information or existing policy.

None.

3. Approval of minutes
i. October 23, 2023 meeting minutes

A motion was made by Commissioner Sweitzer and seconded by Commissioner Parker to approve items 3i 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Sweitzer, Parker, Batiste 
Nays: None 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding a Zone Change Application requesting a rezone from single-family “SF”
residential to garden homes “GH” base zoning with a mixed-use “MU” overlay for properties located at 2500
California Lane and 2512 California Lane, Dalworthington Gardens.

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and action

This agenda item and associated public hearing are continued to December 19, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

5. Future agenda items:

Not needed.

6. Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 6:02 p.m.

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 2 of 26



Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

December 19, 2023 

 While the order of some agenda items may have been changed, the following represents all items discussed and acted 
upon by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

1. Call to Order

Chairman Todd Batiste called the meeting to order at 6:12 p.m. with the following present:

Members Present:
Todd Batiste, Chairperson
Brian Colin
Paul Sweitzer

Members Absent: 
Maurice Clark, Vice Chairperson 
Johanna Storm 
Anthony Parker-Alternate 

Staff Present: 
Sandra Ma, Interim City Secretary 

2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In
compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda, the
City staff and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and may
respond only with statements of factual information or existing policy.

None

3. Discussion and possible action regarding a Zone Change Application requesting a rezone from single-family
“SF” residential to garden homes “GH” base zoning with a mixed-use “MU” overlay for properties located at 2500
California Lane and 2512 California Lane, Dalworthington Gardens.

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and action

Background Information: A Zone Change Application was received for properties located at 2500 California Lane 
and 2512 California Lane for a change from single family “SF” residential to garden home “GH” base zoning with 
a mixed-use “MU” overlay. 

 Per Local Government Code, Chapter 211, zone changes must comply with the City’s  Comprehensive Plan as 
follows: Sec. 211.004.  COMPLIANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.  (a)  Zoning  regulations must be 
adopted in accordance with a comprehensive plan and must be designed to:  
(1) lessen congestion in the streets;
(2) secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers;
(3) promote health and the general welfare;
(4) provide adequate light and air;
(5) prevent the overcrowding of land;
(6) avoid undue concentration of population; or
(7) facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, schools, parks, and other public 
requirements.

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 3 of 26



The Future Land Use Map from the current 2005 adopted Plan shows these properties to  remain as single family 
residential. However, in the latest Plan draft amendment from June 2023 includes changes to proposed Bowen Road 
future land uses as described below. The full description can be found in your packet.   

The Bowen Road Planned Development Overlay may include Large Lot Residential uses but may also include a 
mixture of Medium Density Single Family Garden Homes, and Commercial Uses with a preference toward 
agricultural related businesses (vegetable and meat markets, farm and ranch supply, etc.) and restaurants. Garden 
Home  developments shall include 10 percent open space for parks and community gardens. The Planned 
Development  shall provide an orderly transition from commercial uses to the large lot Residential uses and 
incorporate suitable separation barriers with a preference to vegetated barriers in lieu of hardened barriers such as 
fences. Uses other than large lot residential uses shall be planned development.   

The applicant has communicated to the City he desires to build garden homes with a few small foot print 
restaurants on the south end of the development. 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:17 p.m. 

Trevor Turnbow, 4726 Lennon Arlington, Texas, owner of land began with a presentation. 

Scott McCaskey, 2501 California, spoke that he likes to see homes being built first and then commercial buildings 
last. He is concerned with drainage and fencing going down Texas Drive. 

Dixon Holman, 7304 Baychase Drive, spoke in clarification with Trevor Turnbow about Garden Homes Lots to 
be built first to help fund the rest of the development. 

Cindy Fulton and Michael Pair, 2916 Texas Drive, had questions regarding setbacks, living area, and divider 
between property. 

Michael Pair, 2916 Texas Drive, spoke with question about drainage and sewage.  

With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:36 p.m. 

Chairman Todd Batiste asked a question to Trevor Turnbow if he is pursuing a request with Garden Home Zoning 
with a Commercial Overlay or change request to the Bowen Road Overlay.  Dixon Holman said their intent is to 
conform to the Bowen Road Overlay because of this technicality public notices will need to be re-sent with this 
zoning. 
Attorney clarified we would need to make a motion for this current agenda item to recommend approval or denial. 
If applicant intends to proceed with the Bowen Road Overlay he will need to submit application and public notices 
will need to be sent for meeting. 

After discussion with Dixon Holman, a continuance was asked with no actions taken. In the meantime he can discuss 
with Trevor on which zoning and overlay they would want to proceed with. They could withdraw and resubmit 
before the next meeting.    

Chairman Todd Batiste gave comment regarding drawings saying it was more appealing than the last drawings. The 
Garden Homes would be nice to see creative something instead of straight line set of homes. He likes the 
deacceleration lane that was added. 

Commissioner Brian Colin also said he likes the southbound deacceleration lane and the right turn lane that was 
added. 

Commissioner Paul Switzer said he would like a little more detail on the homes and the car garage because he has 
concerns with spacing.  

Chairman Todd Batiste re-opened public hearing at 6:48 p.m. 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 4 of 26



Commissioner Brian Colin made a motion to move to table this item to the date of the next regular P&Z meeting 
which is January 10, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. and Commissioner Paul Switzer seconded the motion. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Sweitzer and Colin 
Nays: None 

4. Discussion and possible action on a replat for property described as Lot 2R, Block 1 of Dalworthington Gardens
Addition, Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 3428 E. Arkansas Lane
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and action

Background Information:  Section 1.02.151 of the City’s Code of Ordinance states the purpose of a replat is to 
revise or subdivide any part or all of any block or previously platted subdivision, addition, or lot. On November 16, 
2023, John W. Guerin submitted a replat application for property described as Lot 2R, Block 1 of Dalworthington 
Gardens Addition, Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 3428 W. Arkansas Lane 
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas. The plat application was forwarded to the city engineer for review. 
On December 4, 2023, the city engineer conducted his final review of the plat and determined the plat conforms 
with the City’s ordinance and recommended approval of the plat.  Local Government Code , Chapter 212, states 
plats that satisfy all applicable regulations must be approved. The proposed plat satisfies all requirements of city 
ordinance. As such, staff recommends approval of this plat 

Attorney clarified that motion to approve are actually recommendation for approval which will then go to city 
council for action. 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:15 p.m. 

John Guerin, Contactor, spoke regarding the reason for the plat is to add a parking lot to the property. 

With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:15 p.m. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Brian Colin and seconded by Commissioner Paul Sweitzer to recommend 
approval of a replat application from John Guerin for property described as Lot 2R, Block 1 of Dalworthington 
Gardens Addition, Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 3428 W. Arkansas Lane 
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Sweitzer and Colin 
Nays: None 

5. Future agenda items:

Not needed.

6. Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m.

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 5 of 26



Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 
January 10, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order

Chairman Todd Batiste called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following present:

Members Present:
Todd Batiste, Chairperson
Maurice Clark, Vice Chairperson
Anthony Parker, Alternate
Brian Colin

Members Absent
Johanna Storm
Paul Sweitzer

Staff Present:
Sandra Ma, City Secretary

2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In
compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda,
the City staff and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and
may respond only with statements of factual information or existing policy.

None. 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding a replat for property described Lots 1&2, Block 1 of Urcarco Addition,
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 2715 W. Pioneer Parkway, Dalworthington
Gardens, Tarrant County Texas

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and action

Background Information: Section 1.02.151 of the City’s Code of Ordinance states the purpose of a replat is to revise 
or subdivide any part or all of any block or previously platted subdivision, addition, or lot.  On August 9, 2023, Diana 
King submitted a replat application for property described Lots 1&2, Block 1 of Urcarco Addition, Dalworthington 
Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 2715 W. Pioneer Parkway, Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant 
County, Texas. The plat application was forwarded to the city engineer for review. On December 8, 2023, the city 
engineer conducted his final review of the plat and determined the plat conforms with the City’s ordinance and 
recommended approval of the plat.  Local Government Code , Chapter 212, states plats that satisfy all applicable 
regulations must be approved. The proposed plat satisfies all requirements of city ordinance. As such, staff recommends 
approval of this plat 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m. 

Dana King, Architect, gave a presentation. This is one business located on two lots. 

With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:02 p.m. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Anthony Parker and seconded by Commissioner Brian Colin to recommend 
approval of a replat application from Diana King for property described Lots 1&2, Block 1 of Urcarco Addition, 
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas otherwise known as 2715 W. Pioneer Parkway, Dalworthington 
Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas. 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 6 of 26



Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Clark, Parker, Colin 
Nays: None 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding vacancy on P&Z board

No recommendations from board regarding applicants for vacancy, no action taken

5. Future agenda items.

Roosevelt Estates will be on the next meeting February 1, 2024 with public hearing notices sent in advance.

6. Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 6:09 p.m.

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 7 of 26



Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 
February 1, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order

Chairman Todd Batiste called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following present:

Members Present:
Todd Batiste, Chairperson
Maurice Clark, Vice Chairperson
Anthony Parker, Alternate
Johanna Storm
Paul Sweitzer

Members Absent
Brian Colin

Staff Present:
Sandra Ma, City Secretary

2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In
compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda,
the City staff and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and
may respond only with statements of factual information or existing policy.

None. 

3. Discussion and possible recommendation regarding a planned development concept plan application for property
located at 2611 W. Pleasant Ridge Road, Dalworthington Gardens, Texas to be known as Roosevelt Estates Lots 1
– 11, 1X, and 11X of Block A an addition to the City of Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas.

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and action

Vice Chairman Maurice Clark signed a conflict of interest affidavit and sat in the audience for this topic. 

Background information: An application for a change in zoning was submitted by Cannon Clark on December 4, 2024. A 
Concept Plan was submitted with the application showing the proposed improvements and highlighting the proposed 
deviations from the base zoning district requirements. The proposed deviations from the requirements of the base 
zoning district are included in the “Residential Use Criteria” table shown in the Concept Plan. The Concept Plan was 
forwarded to the city engineer for review. On January 23, 2024 the city engineer conducted his final review of the 
Concept Plan and determined that the Concept Plan conforms with the City’s ordinance. Notifications of tonight’s public 
hearing were sent to all property owners within 200’ of the subject property as well as being posted in the Commercial 
Recorder. 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.  
With no one speaking, the public hearing was closed at 6:02 p.m. 

Cannon Clark applicant gave a presentation 

Chairman Todd Batiste re-opened the public hearing at 6:06 p.m. 
David Pondt, 11 Hemingsford spoke with concerns about density, police service, drainage, school, and population 
With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:13 p.m. 

Commissioner Johanna Storm made a motion to recommend approval of the concept plan application at 2611 W. Pleasant 
Ridge Road with a front setback change from 20 to 25 feet for lots 1-4 and was seconded by Commissioner Anthony Parker. 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 8 of 26



Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Parker, Storm, Sweitzer 
Nays: None  

4. Discussion and possible recommendation regarding Final Plan for property located at 2611 W. Pleasant Ridge
Road, Dalworthington Gardens, Texas to be known as Roosevelt Estates Lots 1 – 11, 1X, and 11X of Block A an
addition to the City of Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas.

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and recommendation

Vice Chairman Maurice Clark signed a conflict of interest affidavit and sat in the audience for this topic. 

Background Information: A Final Plan was submitted by Jose De Leon, Shield Engineering Group, PLLC on January 22, 
2024 showing the proposed improvements and highlighting the proposed deviations from the base zoning district 
requirements. The proposed deviations from the requirements of the base zoning district are included in the 
“Residential Use Criteria” table shown on the Final Plan. Typically, the Final Plan for a development within the Planned 
Development zoning district does not come before the Commission until the City Council has approved the zoning 
change and the Concept Plan. In this case, because the Final Plan is being presented to the Commission prior to Council’s 
decision, if a recommendation of approval is to be provided, it shall be contingent on City Council’s approval of the 
zoning change from Single Family to Planned Development. The Final Plan was forwarded to the city engineer for review. 
On January 23, 2024 the city engineer conducted his final review and determined that if City Council approves the 
proposed zoning change, the Final Plan conforms with the City’s ordinance and therefore recommends approval. 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:29 p.m. 
Jennifer and Irene Difonso, 13 Hemingsford asked if materials can be found online at the city website 
David Pondt, 11 Hemingsford questions about square footage and time of development. 
With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:31 p.m. 

Commissioner Johanna Storm made a motion to recommend approval of the Final Plan for the property located at 2611 W. 
Pleasant Ridge Road contingent on the City Council’s approval of the proposed zoning change of the property from Single 
Family to Planned Development and with exception of the gate which will require further study and was seconded by 
Commissioner Paul Sweitzer. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Parker, Storm, Sweitzer 
Nays: None  

5. Discussion and possible recommendation regarding Preliminary Plat application for property located at 2611 W.
Pleasant Ridge Road, Dalworthington Gardens, Texas to be known as Roosevelt Estates Lots 1 – 11, 1X, and 11X of
Block A an addition to the City of Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas.

i. Conduct public hearing
ii. Discussion and recommendation

Vice Chairman Maurice Clark signed a conflict of interest affidavit and sat in the audience for this topic. 

Background Information: A Preliminary Plat was submitted by Jose De Leon with Shield Engineering on January 22, 
2024. Typically the Preliminary Plat for a development within the Planned Development zoning district does not come 
before the Commission until City Council has approved the zoning change and the Concept Plan. In this case, because 
the Preliminary Plat is being presented to the Commission prior to Council’s decision, if a recommendation of approval is 
to be provided, it shall be contingent on City Council’s approval of the zoning change from Single Family to Planned  
Development. The Preliminary Plat was forwarded to the city engineer for review. On January 23, 2024 the city engineer 
conducted his final review and determined that if City Council approves the proposed zoning 
change, the Preliminary Plat conforms with the City’s ordinance and therefore recommends approval. 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 9 of 26



 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:41p.m.  
With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Chairman Todd Batiste made a motion to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat for the property located at 2611 W. 
Pleasant Ridge Road contingent on City Council’s approval of the proposed zoning change of the property from Single 
Family to Planned Development and with the change of lots 1-4 setback being increased from 20-25 feet from the previous 
action, and with further study of the gate at the entrance. Commissioner Johanna Storm seconded the motion. 
 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Parker, Storm, Sweitzer 
Nays: None  

 
 
6. Discussion and possible recommendation request for a concept plan with a Bowen Road planned development 

overlay for property located at  2500 and 2512 California Lane, Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas 
 i. Conduct public hearing 
 ii. Discussion and recommendation  

 
Vice Chairman Maurice Clark joined the bench for the following topics. 
 
Background Information: A Zone Change Application submitted by Trevor Turnbow was received on 7/17/2023 
for properties located at 2500 California Lane and 2512 California Lane for a change from single family “SF” residential 
to garden home “GH” base zoning with a mixed-use “MU” overlay. Per discussion with applicant, city staff, and attorney. 
Applicant submitted an amended a zoning application on 1/16/2024 requesting to allow for the Bowen Road Overlay. 
Notification of tonight’s public hearing were sent to all property owners within 200’ of the subject property as well as 
being posted in the Commercial Recorder. 
 
Per Local Government Code, Chapter 211, zone changes must comply with the City’s Comprehensive Plan as 
follows: 
 
Sec. 211.004. COMPLIANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. (a) Zoning regulations must be adopted in 
accordance with a comprehensive plan and must be designed to: 
(1) lessen congestion in the streets; 
(2) secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 
(3) promote health and the general welfare; 
(4) provide adequate light and air; 
(5) prevent the overcrowding of land; 
(6) avoid undue concentration of population; or 
(7) facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, schools, parks, and other public requirements. 
The Future Land Use Map from the current 2005 adopted Plan shows these properties to remain as single family 
residential. However, in the latest Plan draft amendment from June 2023 includes changes to proposed Bowen Road 
future land uses as described below. The full description can be found in your packet. 
The Bowen Road Planned Development Overlay may include Large Lot Residential uses but may also include a 
mixture of Medium Density Single Family Garden Homes, and Commercial Uses with a preference toward 
agricultural related businesses (vegetable and meat markets, farm and ranch supply, etc.) and restaurants. Garden 
Home developments shall include 10 percent open space for parks and community gardens. The Planned 
Development shall provide an orderly transition from commercial uses to the large lot Residential uses and 
incorporate suitable separation barriers with a preference to vegetated barriers in lieu of hardened barriers such as 
fences. Uses other than large lot residential uses shall be planned development. 
The applicant has communicated to the City he desires to build garden homes with a few small foot print restaurants 
on the south end of the development. 
 
Trevor Turnbow applicant gave a presentation. 
  
Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:50 p.m.  
Cynthia Fulton, 2916 Texas wrote in for opposition – fencing She owns property 2815, 2901, and 2907 Texas 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 10 of 26



 

Scott McCaskey, 2501 California spoke in opposition – traffic, water run-off, fencing, drainage 
Lauri Bianco, 2416 Roosevelt spoke in regard to types of restaurants 
Dixon Holman, 7304 Bay Chase Drive, a developer with Trevor, spoke to ensure ordinances and rules are adhered to. 
With no one else desiring to speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Johanna Storm made a motion to recommend approval of a zone change application requesting for a concept 
plan with a Bowen Road planned development overlay for property located at 2500 and 2512 California Lane, 
Dalworthington Gardens, Tarrant County, Texas and was seconded by Commissioner Anthony Parker 
 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Ayes: Members Parker, Storm, Sweitzer, Clark 
Nays: None  

 
 
7. Consideration of a Special Exception Application for motor vehicle sales – indoor: Showroom wholly within a 

building; no vehicle display visible from outside the building; detailing for sale but no mechanical work allowed; 
no outside storage,  in accordance with the City of Dalworthington Garden’s Zoning Ordinance  subsection (a) 
(15) of Section 14.02.224. Business located at 2209 Michigan Ave, Dalworthington Gardens. 

 i.   Conduct public hearing 
 ii.  Discussion and recommendation 
 

Item was continued to the next meeting so that there is proper time to publish notice.  
 

8. Discussion and possible action to potentially change P&Z meeting date and time. 
 

Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 7:17 p.m. 
 
Lynn Walker, 2901 Seiber Drive spoke in opposition. 

 
Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Paul Sweitzer made a motion to set P&Z Meetings the first Thursday of each month at 6:00 p.m.and was 
seconded by Commissioner Anthony Parker. 
 
 Future agenda items 
 

None 
 
9. Adjourn 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 11 of 26



Dalworthington Gardens Planning and Zoning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

March 7, 2024 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

 Chairperson Todd Batiste called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following present:  
 

Members Present:  
Todd Batiste, Chairperson  
Maurice Clark, Vice Chairperson 
Brian Colin 
Paul Sweitzer  
Anthony Parker, Alternate 
Tom McCarty, Alternate 
 
Members Absent:   
Johanna Storm  
  
 
Staff Present:  
Sandra Ma, City Secretary 

 
2. Citizens who wish to speak to the Planning & Zoning Commission Members will be heard at this time. In 

compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the presentation is on the agenda, 
the City staff and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are prevented from discussing the subject and 
may respond only with statements of factual information or existing policy. 

 
 None 

 
3. Minutes 

 
i. 12.13.2023 Minutes. 

ii. 12.19.2023 Minutes. 
iii.   1.10.2024 Minutes. 

 
  Chairman Batiste deferred topic to next month’s meeting for review of accuracy.  

 
4. Consideration of a Special Exception Application for motor vehicle sales – indoor: Showroom wholly within a 

building; no vehicle display visible from outside the building; detailing for sale but no mechanical work allowed; 
no outside storage in accordance with the City of Dalworthington Garden’s Zoning Ordinance subsection (a)(15) 
of Section 14.02.224. Business located at 2209 Michigan Ave, Dalworthington Gardens, Texas 

i. Conduct public hearing 
ii. Discussion and action 

 
 Background information: Business Owner Amel Kohnic is requesting a special exception in accordance 
 with Section 14.02.224(a)(15) for motor vehicle sales – indoor: Showroom wholly within a building; no 
 vehicle display visible from outside the building; detailing for sale but no mechanical work allowed; no 
 outside storage as outline in Ordinance No. 2023-25 
 
 Mr. Kohnic originally applied for a certificate of occupancy on May 30, 2019 and was given a certificate 
 of occupancy July 2, 2019 for auto repair and motorcycle shop. Mr. Kohnic is seeking to renew his dealer’s 
 license with the State. He has denied renewal from the State with an explanation per Dalworthington 
 Gardens City Ordinance 14.02.224, which does not permit vehicle sales 
 
 An application for a certificate of occupancy was submitted on January 22, 2024 and was returned from 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 12 of 26



 

 Safebuilt, which is DWG 3rd party plan reviewer/inspection with a denial letter on January 26, 2024. 
 Consideration for special exceptions should abide by the following guidelines from the ordinance. They 
 differ from variances in that a hardship is not required to be shown or proven. 
 
 Notifications of tonight’s public hearing was sent to all property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
 property as well as being posted in the Commercial Record. Of the nine property owner notifications sent,1 
 was returned with comments. 1 were returned in favor of the zoning change and 0 were returned in 
 opposition of the zoning change. All comments included on the notifications returned will be read during 
 the public hearing. 

 
 
 Chairman Todd Batiste opened the public hearing at 6:05 p.m. 

  
 The applicant Amir Kohnic gave presentation. 
 
 David Marvin, 2805 Roosevelt spoke in favor 
 
 Lynn Walker, 2901 Sieber spoke in favor 
 
 Gilbert J. McGinty, 4400 Spinnaker spoke in favor 
 
 The public hearing was closed at 6:09 p.m. 
 
 A motion was made by Commissioner Sweitzer and seconded by Commissioner Parker  to recommend a special 
 exception application for motor vehicle sales- indoor: Showroom wholly within a building; no vehicle display 
 from outside the building; detailing for sale but no mechanical work allowed; no outside storage, in accordance 
 with the City of Dalworthington Garden’s Zoning Ordinance subsection (a)(15) of Section 14.02.224. 
  
 Motion carried by the following vote: 
 Ayes: Members Clark, Colin Sweitzer, and Parker 
 Nays: None 

 
5. Adjourn  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:09 p.m. 

 
 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 13 of 26



Staff Agenda Report    Agenda Item: 4. 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion and possible recommendation regarding an application from Robert Walker with 
LRG Associates, LLC for a special exception at 2889 W. Pioneer Parkway for mobile food units to be on property 
longer than twenty-four hours in accordance with Section 14.02.321(c)(22) of City Ordinances. 
 
 
 

Background Information: A request has been received Robert Walker with LRG Associates, LLC for a special 
exception to allow mobile food units to stay on site longer than twenty-four hours. The Commission’s 
recommendation will go to City Council on May 16, 2024 for final consideration. 
 
Notification of tonight’s public hearing was sent to all property owners within 200 feet of the subject property as 
well as being posted in the Commercial Recorder. Of the eight property owner notifications sent, 0 were returned 
with comments. 0 were returned in favor and 0 were returned in opposition.  
 
Recommended Action/Motion: Board options: 
 
Recommend approval an application from Robert Walker with LRG Associates, LLC for a special exception at 
2889 W. Pioneer Parkway for mobile food units to be on property longer than twenty-four hours in accordance with 
Section 14.02.321(c)(22) of City ordinances. 
 
OR 
 
Recommend denial an application from Robert Walker with LRG Associates, LLC for a special exception at 2889 
W. Pioneer Parkway for mobile food units to be on property longer than twenty-four hours in accordance with 
Section 14.02.321(c)(22) of City ordinances. 
 
Attachments:   
Application 
  
 
 
 

5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 14 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 15 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 16 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 17 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 18 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 19 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 20 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 21 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 22 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 23 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 24 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 25 of 26



5.2.2024 P&Z Packet Pg. 26 of 26


	0_ 5.2.2024 Agenda
	3a_12.13.2023 Minutes
	3b_12.19.2023 Minutes
	3c_1.10.2024 Minutes
	3d_2.01.2024  Minutes
	3e_3.7.2024 Minutes
	4a_AIS
	Attachments:
	Application

	4b_Special Exception Application Robert Walker - Food Truck more than 24 hours
	Special Exception Application - Food Truck more than 24 hours.pdf
	part 2




